
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

MISSOULA DIVISION 

FILED 
AUG 0 9 2016 

Clertc, U S District Court 
District Of Montana 

Missoula 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, CV 13-03-M-DLC 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

AMERICAN EVOICE, LTD., EMERICA 
MEDIA CORPORATION, FONERIGHT, 
INC., GLOBAL VOICE MAD0 130.23.497



Emerica Media Corp.; FoneRight, Inc.; Global Voice Mail, Ltd.; HearYou2, Inc.; 

Network Assurance, Inc.; SecuratDat, Inc.; Techmax Solutions, Inc.; Voice Mail 

Professionals, Inc.; Steven V. Sann; Terry D. Lane (a/k/a Terry D. Sann); Nathan 

M. Sann; and Robert M. Braach; and Relief Defendant Bibliologic, Ltd.; and 

WHEREAS Plaintiff FTC alleges in its Complaint that Defendants engaged 

in deceptive and unfair acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 

15 U.S.C. § 45,ct <</Conf4N.049 0 T3.5 0 0 13.5 4 



converting the case to a Chapter 7, and Christy L. Brandon was appointed Chapter 

7 Trustee of the bankruptcy estate; and 

WHEREAS on August 3, 2015, the Chapter 7 Trustee commenced an 

adversary proceeding against Relief Defendant Bibliologic in Bankruptcy Court, 

Brandon v. Bibliologic, Adv. No. 15-0024 (Bankr. D. Mont.), to recover estate 

property and set aside certain transfers to Bibliologic as alleged fraudulent 

conveyances; and 

WHEREAS the Chapter 7 Trustee has entered into a settlement agreement 

with Relief Defendant Bibliologic, subject to Bankruptcy Court approval, that 

would resolve all matters in dispute between the Chapter 7 Trustee and 

Bibliologic, and that contains substantially the same asset turnover relief against 

Bibliologic set forth in Section LB of this Order; and 

WHEREAS Relief Defendant Bibliologic, Ltd. ("Bibliologic") and Plaintiff 

FTC have of this 



2. ReliefDefendant Bibliologic neither admits nor 
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Inc.; Voice Mail Professionals, Inc., as well as any affiliates, 

subsidiaries, successors, or assigns, and any fictitious business 

entities or business names created or used by these entities, or any of 

them. 

3. "Defendants" means the Individual Defendants and the Corporate 

Defendants, individually, collectively, or in any combination. 

4. "Estate" means the Chapter 7 bankruptcy estate of Steven Vincent 

Sann, Debtor, in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District 

of Montana, Case 



A. Judgment in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) 

is hereby entered in favor of the Commission against Bibliologic as 

equitable monetary relief. The Commission and Bibliologic stipulate, 

only for purposes of this Section, that this judgment amount 

represents unjust enrichment received by Bibliologic. 

B. Within 10 days of the entry of this Order, Bibliologic shall transfer to 

the Chapter 7 Trustee and the Estate the following assets: 

1. Tract 2D of COS 6245, located in the Northwest Quarter of 

Section 17, Township 15 North, Range 14 West, Principal 

Meridian Montana, Missoula County, Montana, according to 

the Official map or plat thereof on file and of record in the 

Office of the Clerk and Recorder of said County, containing 

94.53 acres, more or less, and including any structures or 

improvements thereon. 

2. All gold and silver in Bibliologic's possession. 

3. All other assets in Bibliologic's possession, including but not 

limited to: 

a. 1999 Ford Ranger, Yanmar backhoe, 4-wheeler, RV, and 

trailer identified on the Balance Sheet attached hereto as 

-6-

Case 9:13-cv-00003-DLC   Document 227   Filed 08/09/16   Page 6 of 15



Exhibit 1. 

b. All funds in U.S. Bank account ending in 

funds1.6d
(in )Tjaccount ending in funds in i n  endingt 
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suspended, 



retained pursuant to Section I.B.3.c. Upon such a finding, Bibliologic 

shall immediately disgorge to the FTC whatever remains of the 

$100,000, and the portion of the judgment equal to the amount 

transferred, paid, disbursed, pledged, assigned, loaned, or 



A. The facts alleged in the Complaint will be taken as true, without 

further proof, in any subsequent civil litigation by or on behalf of the 

Commission, including in a proceeding to enforce its rights to any 

payment or monetary judgment pursuant to this Order, such as a non­

dischargeability complaint in any bankruptcy case. 

B. The facts alleged in the Complaint establish all elements necessary to 

sustain an action 

Bgan  



redress is completed, the Commission may apply any remaining 

money for such other equitable relief (including consumer 

information remedies) as it determines to be reasonably related to 

Defendants' practices alleged in the Complaint. Any money not used 

for such equitable relief is to be deposited to the U.S. Treasury as 

disgorgement. Bibliologic has no right to challenge any actions the 

Commission or its representatives may take pursuant to this 

Subsection. 

III. MODIFICATION OF ASSET FREEZE 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the freeze imposed on Bibliologic's 

assets pursuant to the Stipulated Preliminary Injunction entered on May 8, 2013 

(DE 56) is modified to permit the transfers of assets required by Section I of this 

Order. Upon completion of all the transfers of assets required by Section I, the 

asset freeze shall be dissolved as to Bibliologic. 

IV. PROHIBITION ON 

IT 



permitting any of the $100,000 retained pursuant to Section I.B.3.c.to inure to the 

benefit of any Defendant, or to any private shareholder or individual within the 

meaning of 26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3). 

V. ORDER ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Bibliologic shall, within 7 days of entry 

of this Order, submit to the Commission acknowledgments of receipt of this Order 

signed by each of its directors, and sworn under penalty of perjury. 

VI. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Bibliologic shall make timely 



and documentation of any other expenditures upon the request of the 

FTC. 

C. Any submission to the 



Bibliologic's compliance with this Order, including the financial representations 

identified in Section I.E and the transfer of assets required by Section 1.B of this 

Order: 

A. Within 14 days of receipt of a written request from a representative of 

the Commission, Bibliologic must: submit compliance reports or 

other requested information, which must be sworn under penalty of 

perjury; appear for depositions; and produce documents for 

inspection and copying. The Commission is also authorized to obtain 

discovery, without further leave of court, using any of the procedures 

prescribed by Federal Rules of Civil 



affiliated with Bibliologic, without the necessity of identification or 

prior notice. Nothing in this Order limits the Commission's lawful 

use of compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC 

Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 49, 57b-l. 

VIII. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court retains jurisdiction of this 

matter for purposes of construction, modification, and enforcement of this Order. 
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